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MANAGEMENT�S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING
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The accompanying consolidated financial statements of CryptoLogic Inc. are the responsibility of Management and have been approved by the
Board of Directors.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by Management in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles. These statements include some amounts that are based on best estimates and judgment. Management has determined such amounts on
a reasonable basis in order to ensure that the financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects.

CryptoLogic�s policy is to maintain systems of internal accounting and administrative controls of high quality, consistent with reasonable cost.
Such systems are designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial information is relevant, accurate and reliable and that the
Company�s assets are appropriately accounted for and adequately safeguarded.

The Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring that Management fulfills its responsibilities for financial reporting and is ultimately
responsible for approving the financial statements. The Board carries out this responsibility principally through its Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is appointed by the Board and is comprised of a majority of outside Directors. The committee meets periodically with
Management and the external auditors to discuss internal controls over the financial reporting process, auditing matters and financial reporting
issues to satisfy itself that each party is properly discharging its responsibilities. The Audit Committee reviews the Company�s annual
consolidated financial statements, the external auditors� report and other information in the Annual Report. The committee reports its findings to
the Board for consideration by the Board when it approves the financial statements for issuance to the shareholders.

On behalf of the shareholders, the financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP, the external auditors, in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted auditing standards. KPMG LLP has full and free access to the Audit Committee.

/s/ LEWIS ROSE                              
Lewis Rose
President and CEO

/s/ STEPHEN TAYLOR                             
Stephen Taylor
Chief Financial Officer

February 14, 2006

Consolidated Financial Statements
(In U.S. dollars)

CRYPTOLOGIC INC.

Years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

KPMG LLP
Chartered Accountants
Suite 3300 Commerce Court West
PO Box 31 Stn Commerce Court
Toronto ON M5L 1B2
Canada

Telephone (416) 777-8500
Fax (416) 777-8818
Internet www.kpmg.ca
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AUDITORS� REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of CryptoLogic Inc. as at December 31, 2005 and 2004 and the consolidated statements of
earnings, retained earnings and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company�s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform
an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as at
December 31, 2005 and 2004 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles.

Chartered Accountants

Toronto, Canada

February 14, 2006

KPMG LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership is the Canadian
member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.

CRYPTOLOGIC INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands of U.S. dollars)

December 31, 2005 and 2004

2005 2004

Assets
Current assets:
     Cash and cash equivalents $ 94,420 $ 43,182
     Security deposits (note 2) 1,500 7,000
     Short-term investments 3,214 35,782
     Accounts receivable and other 8,629 6,487
     Prepaid expenses 4,615 1,754

112,378 94,205
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User funds on deposit (note 3) 25,953 18,908

Capital assets (note 4) 14,214 9,227

Intangible assets (note 5) 77 106

Goodwill 1,776 1,776

$ 154,398 $ 124,222

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

Current liabilities:
     Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 37,495 $ 30,056
     Income taxes payable (note 11) 1,314 1,331

38,809 31,387

User funds held on deposit (note 3) 25,953 18,908

Future income taxes (note 11) 2,411 1,840

67,173 52,135

Shareholders' equity:
     Share capital (note 7) 25,171 20,380
     Stock options (note 8) 2,163 1,114
     Retained earnings 59,891 50,593

87,225 72,087

Commitments and contingencies (note 9)

$ 154,398 $ 124,222

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

On behalf of the Board:

/s/ Robert H. Stikeman                           Director, Chairman

/s/ Lewis N. Rose                                     Director

1
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CRYPTOLOGIC INC.
 Consolidated Statements of Earnings
(In thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share disclosure)

Years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

2005 2004

Revenue $ 86,307 $ 63,714

Expenses:
     Operating costs 52,658 39,975
     General and administrative 7,642 6,028
     Software development costs (note 4) 3,287 �
     Finance 417 374
     Amortization 3,894 2,089

67,898 48,466

Earnings before undernoted 18,409 15,248
Interest income 3,627 1,293

Earnings before income taxes 22,036 16,541

Income taxes (note 11):
     Current 935 1,033
     Future 571 1,840

1,506 2,873

Earnings $ 20,530 $ 13,668

Earnings per common share (note 10):
     Basic $ 1.51 $ 1.05
     Diluted 1.46 1.01

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2
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CRYPTOLOGIC INC.
 Consolidated Statements of Retained Earnings
(In thousands of U.S. dollars)

Years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

2005 2004

Retained earnings, beginning of year $ 50,593 $ 38,758

Earnings 20,530 13,668

Dividends paid (2,984) (1,833)

Excess of purchase price of treasury
   shares over stated value (note 7) (8,248) �

Retained earnings, end of year $ 59,891 $ 50,593

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

3

CRYPTOLOGIC INC.
 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(In thousands of U.S. dollars)

Years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004
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2005 2004

Cash flows from (used in) operating activities:
     Earnings $ 20,530 $ 13,668
     Adjustments to reconcile earnings to cash
       provided by (used in) operating activities:
         Amortization 3,894 2,089
         Future income taxes 571 1,840
         Stock options 1,807 1,200

26,802 18,797

     Change in operating assets and liabilities:
         Security deposits 5,500 (450)
         Accounts receivable and other (2,142) (4,098)
         Prepaid expenses (2,861) (591)
         Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 7,439 4,993
         Income taxes payable (17) 268

34,721 18,919

Cash flows from (used in) financing activities:
     Issue of capital stock 4,986 8,506
     Repurchase of common shares (9,201) �
     Dividends paid (2,984) (1,833)

(7,199) 6,673

Cash flows from (used in) investing activities:
     Purchase of intangible assets (2) (89)
     Additions to capital assets (8,850) (7,296)
     Short-term investments 32,568 (19,035)

23,716 (26,420)

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 51,238 (828)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 43,182 44,010

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 94,420 $ 43,182

Supplemental cash flow information:
     Income taxes paid $ 951 $ 765
     Interest received 3,830 1,095
     Non-cash portion of options and warrants exercised 962 524

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CRYPTOLOGIC INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(In thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share disclosure and where indicated otherwise)

Years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

CryptoLogic Inc. (the �Company�) is a software development company with leading proprietary commerce-enabling technology, permitting
secure, reliable, high-speed and private financial transactions over the Internet. The Company operates in one segment and its software is
currently being used for online gaming and related electronic commerce. Substantially all of the Company�s revenue is earned in U.S. dollars,
British pounds and Euros in the form of licensing fees and support services from licensees located outside of North America. Revenue from the
top seven licensees constituted 90% (2004 � 93%) of revenue. The licensees� internet businesses are licensed by the governments of Alderney in
the British Isles and Netherlands Antilles. The Company measures and reports its results in U.S. dollars.

1. Significant accounting policies:

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, and as
described in note 14, conform in all material respects with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. A summary of
significant accounting policies is set out below:

(a) Basis of presentation:

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.

(b) Revenue recognition:

The Company enters into non-exclusive gaming software hosting, licensing and services arrangements related to the design and
operation of casino sites on the internet on behalf of licensed casinos.

Revenue from providing software and support services to licensees is recognized, as the services are performed, on a daily basis,
at the time of the gaming transactions, pursuant to the agreements with the licensees in which the Company participates in a pro
rata share of the daily gaming profits. In addition, the Company receives a standard monthly fee for the provision of hosting and
related services.

5
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CRYPTOLOGIC INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(In thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share disclosure and where indicated otherwise)

Years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):

Revenue from the customization of the software graphics, sound and texts to the specifications of the licensees is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the term of the software and support agreements.

Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis.

(c) Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with original maturity dates of 90 days or less, and are stated at cost,
which approximates market value.

(d) Short-term investments:

Short-term investments include highly liquid investments with original maturity dates between 3 and 12 months, and are stated at
lower of cost or market value. At the balance sheet date, cost approximates market value.

(e) Capital assets:

Capital assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization, based on the estimated useful lives of the assets, is
provided using the following methods and annual rates:

Asset Basis Rate

Computer equipment Diminishing balance 30%
Office furniture and equipment Diminishing balance 20%
Computer software and licenses Straight line 3 - 5 years
Capitalized software development Straight line 5 years
Leasehold improvements Straight line Term of lease

6

CRYPTOLOGIC INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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(In thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share disclosure and where indicated otherwise)

Years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(f) Software development:

Costs related to the development of software are expensed as incurred unless such costs meet the criteria for deferral and
amortization under Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. Under The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants�
(�CICA�) Handbook Section 3450, Research and Development Costs, the Company capitalizes certain computer software
development costs incurred subsequent to establishing technological feasibility; and will be amortizing the capitalized software
development costs using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the software once the software is available for
general release.

(g) Income taxes:

The Company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Future income tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing
assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss carry forwards. Future income tax assets and liabilities are
measured using enacted or substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on future income tax assets and liabilities of a change in
tax rates is recognized in income in the year that includes the enactment or substantive enactment date.

7

CRYPTOLOGIC INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(In thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share disclosure and where indicated otherwise)

Years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(h) Stock-based compensation:

(i) Stock options:

The Company has a stock option plan for directors, officers and other key employees. Effective January 1, 2003, the
Company adopted the amended recommendations of CICA with respect to accounting for stock-based compensation and
other stock-based payments. The Company applies the fair value method to all grants of stock options. Based on the
transitional provisions, all stock options granted on or after January 1, 2003 are accounted for as capital transaction at the
time of the grant and are reflected as stock options in shareholders� equity. The fair value of options granted is estimated at
the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model incorporating assumptions regarding risk-free interest rates,
dividend yield, volatility factor of the expected market price of the Company�s stock and a weighted average expected life
of options. The estimated fair value of the options is recorded over the options� vesting period. Any consideration paid on
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the exercise of stock options is credited to share capital.

(ii) Long-term incentive plan:

Effective January 1, 2005, CryptoLogic Inc. introduced a long-term incentive plan for officers and directors of the
Company. The plan provides for the granting of performance share units to reward participants for the growth in the
Company�s earnings per share, calculated on a fully diluted basis, and share price, with vesting over a three-year
performance period. Costs related to this plan are amortized into income over the life of the plan. Awarded performance
share units are recorded as a liability and adjusted to cash in the reporting period and settled in cash when fully vested.

(i) Foreign currency translation:

Monetary items denominated in other than U.S. dollars are translated into U.S. dollars at exchange rates in effect at the balance
sheet dates, and non-monetary items are translated at rates of exchange in effect when the assets were acquired or obligations
incurred. Revenue and expenses are translated at rates in effect at the time of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses
are included in the statements of earnings.

8

CRYPTOLOGIC INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(In thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share disclosure and where indicated otherwise)

Years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(j) Intangible assets:

Intangible assets consist of customer lists and domain names and are amortized over their useful lives, generally three to five
years.

(k) Goodwill:

Goodwill is the residual amount that results when the purchase price of an acquired business exceeds the sum of the amounts
allocated to the assets acquired, less liabilities assumed, based on their fair values.

Goodwill is not amortized and is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the asset might be impaired. The impairment test is carried out in two steps. In the first step, the carrying amount is
compared with its fair value. When the fair value exceeds its carrying amount, goodwill is considered not to be impaired and the
second step of the impairment test is unnecessary. The second step is carried out when the carrying amount exceeds its fair value,
in which case, the implied fair value of the goodwill is compared with its carrying amount to measure the amount of the
impairment loss, if any. The implied fair value of goodwill is determined in the same manner as the value of goodwill is
determined in a business combination described in the preceding paragraph, using the fair value as if it was the purchase price.
When the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of the goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized in an
amount equal to the excess and is presented as a separate line item in the statements of earnings.
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For the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company assessed impairment of goodwill and has determined that there
was no impairment in value.

(l) Earnings per common share:

The Company uses the treasury stock method in computing diluted earnings per common share. The treasury stock method is a
method of recognizing the use of proceeds that could be obtained upon the exercise of options and warrants in computing diluted
earnings per common share. It assumes that any proceeds would be used to purchase its common shares at the average market
price during the year being reported on.

9

CRYPTOLOGIC INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(In thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share disclosure and where indicated otherwise)

Years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(m) Derivative instruments:

The Company has in prior years entered into derivative financial instruments, principally forward foreign exchange contracts
(used to manage foreign currency exposures on operating costs). The Company�s policy is not to utilize derivative financial
instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

The Company�s practice has been not to designate these contracts as hedges for accounting purposes and therefore, not formally
document all relationships between hedging instruments and hedged items. Accordingly, forward foreign exchange contracts are
recorded at fair value based on quoted market value and any change in fair value is recognized in operating costs in the statements
of earnings; and included in either accounts receivable and other or accounts payable and accrued liabilities.

(n) Variable interest entities:

In June 2003, the CICA issued Accounting Guideline 15, Variable Interest Entities (�AcG-15�), which became applicable to the
Company on January 1, 2005. Variable interest entities (�VIEs�) include entities in which the equity investors do not have a
controlling financial interest or the equity investment at risk is not sufficient to permit the entity to finance its activities without
additional subordinated financial support by other parties.

Management assessed the Company�s operations and relationships in light of AcG-15 and concluded that there are no VIEs in
respect of which the Company is the primary beneficiary.

(o) Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the year. Actual amounts could differ from those estimates.
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CRYPTOLOGIC INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(In thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share disclosure and where indicated otherwise)

Years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

1. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(p) Recent accounting pronouncements � financial instruments:

In January 2005, the CICA issued Handbook Section 3855, Financial Instruments � Recognition and Measurement, Handbook
Section 1530, Comprehensive Income, and Handbook Section 3865, Hedges. The new standards will be effective for interim and
annual financial statements commencing in 2007. Earlier adoption is permitted. The new standards will require presentation of a
separate statement of comprehensive income. Comprehensive income is the change in net equity of an enterprise during a period
from transactions and other events and circumstances from non-owner sources. Foreign exchange gains and losses in the
translation of the financial statements of self-sustaining subsidiaries previously recorded in a separate section of shareholders�
equity will be presented in comprehensive income. Derivative financial instruments will be recorded in the balance sheet at fair
value and the changes in fair value of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges will be reported in comprehensive income. The
Company will access the impact of the new standards during 2006.

2. Security deposits:

Security deposits are amounts held by the Company�s bank as collateral granted to foreign banks and payment processors that process
deposit and credit card transactions on its behalf and as security for forward foreign exchange contracts.

3. User funds on deposit:

User funds on deposit represent amounts deposited by end users of licensees for playing online games. These funds are treated as
deposits of the end user until such games are played.

11
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CRYPTOLOGIC INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(In thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share disclosure and where indicated otherwise)

Years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

4. Capital assets:

2005 2004

Cost
Computer equipment $ 9,108 $ 5,559
Office furniture and equipment 1,878 1,226
Computer software and licenses 6,699 5,386
Capitalized software development 1,489 1,316
Leasehold improvements 3,918 1,004

23,092 14,491

Less accumulated amortization
Computer equipment 3,948 2,393
Office furniture and equipment 396 371
Computer software and licenses 3,664 1,907
Leasehold improvements 870 593

8,878 5,264

Net book value
Computer equipment 5,160 3,166
Office furniture and equipment 1,482 855
Computer software and licenses 3,035 3,479
Capitalized software development 1,489 1,316
Leasehold improvements 3,048 411

Total net book value $ 14,214 $ 9,227

Amortization expense of capital assets was $3,863 (2004 � $1,984).

During the course of the year, the Company determined certain software being developed no longer met the criteria for capitalization. As
a result of this decision, the Company expensed $2,744 of software development costs incurred in 2005. Together with severances of
$543, the Company took a total charge against earnings of $3,287 in 2005.

12
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CRYPTOLOGIC INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(In thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share disclosure and where indicated otherwise)

Years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

5. Intangible assets:

Intangible assets consist of customer lists and domain names. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, customer lists with a cost of $315 have
been fully amortized. At December 31, 2005, domain names have a cost of $157 (2004 � $155) and a net book value of $77 (2004 � $106).

6. Credit facilities:

The Company has an operating credit facility with a Canadian chartered bank in the amount of $3,000. No amount has been utilized
under this line in 2005 and 2004.

7. Share capital:

(a) Authorized:

Unlimited common shares

Issued and outstanding:

Common Shares Series F Warrants Total
Number Amount Number Amount amount

Balance, December 31, 2003 12,300,397 $ 11,078 30,000 $ 272 $ 11,350
Exercise of stock options 1,011,101 9,030 � � 9,030

Balance, December 31, 2004 13,311,498 20,108 30,000 272 20,380
Repurchase and cancellation
   of shares (509,700) (953) � � (953)
Exercise of stock options 498,102 5,318 � � 5,318
Exercise of Series F purchase
   warrants 22,500 630 (22,500) (204) 426
Expiry of Series F purchase
   warrants � 68 (7,500) (68) �

 Balance, December 31, 2005 13,322,400 $ 25,171 � $ � $ 25,171

Series F warrants:

During 2001, the Company issued Series F warrants to acquire 30,000 common shares of the Company for Cdn. $23.00 per share
pursuant to the acquisition of ALI. During the year, 22,500 warrants were exercised (2004 � nil) and 7,500 expired.
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CRYPTOLOGIC INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(In thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share disclosure and where indicated otherwise)

Years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

7. Share capital (continued):

(b) Normal course issuer bid:

During 2005 and 2004 under normal course issuer bids, the Board of Directors approved the repurchase and cancellation of up to
the following number of shares representing 10% of the outstanding common shares at that time:

Repurchase and cancelled shares

Normal course issuer bid
Authorized

shares 2005 2004
Total

under plan

September 23, 2004 to
   September 22, 2005 1,250,000 270,500 � 270,500
September 28, 2005 to
   September 27, 2006 1,340,000 239,200 � 239,200

Under the September 23, 2004 to September 22, 2005 bid, the Company repurchased and cancelled 270,500 common shares
during 2005 for a total cost of $5,225, of which $4,722, representing the excess of purchase price over stated value, was charged
to retained earnings.

Under the September 28, 2005 to September 27, 2006 bid, the Company repurchased and cancelled 239,200 common shares
during 2005 for a total cost of $3,976, of which $3,526, representing the excess of purchase price over stated value, was charged
to retained earnings.

8. Stock-based compensation:

(a) Stock option plan:

Under the stock option plan, the Company may grant options to directors, officers and other key employees to purchase common
shares. Under the plan, a maximum of 3,000,000 common shares may be issued. The exercise price of the options may not be less
than the market value of the underlying common shares on the date of grant. The Company does not grant stock options with an
exercise price below the market value at the date of grant. There are 351,695 (2004 � 277,209) common shares available to be
issued under the stock option plan as at December 31, 2005. Options typically vest over a period of three or four years and the
term of the options may not exceed five years.

14
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CRYPTOLOGIC INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(In thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share disclosure and where indicated otherwise)

Years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

8. Stock-based compensation (continued):

Details of stock option transactions are as follows:

2005 2004

Number
of

options

Weighted
average
exercise
price of
options

Number
of

options

Weighted
average
exercise
price of
options

(Cdn$) (Cdn$)

Options outstanding,
   beginning of year 1,427,661 $ 13.75 2,317,650 $ 13.32
Granted 337,250 25.93 483,500 18.94
Exercised (498,102) 11.42 (1,011,101) 10.86
Forfeited (161,736) 20.43 (362,388) 25.98

Options outstanding,
   end of year 1,105,073 17.59 1,427,661 13.75

Options exercisable,
   end of year 340,841 $ 15.79 452,606 $ 12.77

Options outstanding,
2005

Options exercisable,
2005

Range of
exercise price

Number
outstanding

Weighted
average

remaining
life (years)

Weighted
average
exercise

price
Number

exercisable

Weighted
average
exercise

price

(Cdn$) (Cdn$) (Cdn$)

$5.00-$10.00 341,750 1.89 $ 7.84 153,813 $ 8.16
$10.01-$15.00 29,000 2.66 12.45 10,250 12.89
$15.01-$20.00 302,210 3.17 17.55 97,041 17.87
$20.01-$25.00 285,125 4.35 23.01 46,249 22.82
$25.01-$30.00 92,650 4.03 27.24 5,150 25.75
$30.01-$35.00 34,000 2.51 33.28 15,000 33.97
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$35.01-$40.00 9,338 2.91 36.80 3,338 36.06
$40.01-$45.00 11,000 0.95 44.23 10,000 44.34

1,105,073 3.10 17.59 340,841 15.79
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CRYPTOLOGIC INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(In thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share disclosure and where indicated otherwise)

Years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

8. Stock-based compensation (continued):

Options outstanding,
2004

Options exercisable,
2004

Range of
exercise price

Number
outstanding

Weighted
average

remaining
life (years)

Weighted
average
exercise

price
Number

exercisable

Weighted
average
exercise

price

(Cdn$) (Cdn$) (Cdn$)

$5.00-$10.00 651,069 2.89 $ 7.92 227,526 $ 8.46
$10.01-$15.00 181,125 1.69 13.12 138,750 13.25
$15.01-$20.00 409,917 4.16 17.43 59,667 17.18
$20.01-$25.00 131,000 4.61 24.00 � �
$25.01-$30.00 19,800 4.81 25.72 600 26.58
$30.01-$35.00 18,000 1.45 33.96 13,500 33.96
$35.01-$40.00 6,750 1.45 36.13 5,063 36.13
$40.01-$45.00 10,000 1.60 44.34 7,500 44.34

@@@ 1,427,661 3.25 13.75 452,606 12.77

The Company expenses the cost of all stock option grants issued on or after January 1, 2003, determined using the fair value method. The
estimated fair value of the options is recorded over the periods that the options vest. The fair value of options granted were estimated
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions:

2005 2004

Dividend yield 0.75% 0.75%
Risk-free interest rate 3.25% 2.75%
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Expected volatility 50.00% 50.00%
Expected life of options in years 5 5

Included in operating costs is the cost of stock options in the amount of $1,807 (2004 �$1,200).
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CRYPTOLOGIC INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(In thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share disclosure and where indicated otherwise)

Years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

8. Stock-based compensation (continued):

For the year ended December 31, 2002, no compensation cost was recorded on the grant of stock options during that year. In accordance
with the transitional provisions related to the CICA Handbook, additional pro forma disclosure is provided as if the fair value method of
accounting had been used to account for these stock options. The fair value of options granted in 2002 was determined using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model, using the following weighted average assumptions:

 Dividend yield 0.00%
 Risk-free interest rate 2.00%
 Expected volatility 100.00%
 Expected life of options in year 5

Had compensation expense been determined based on the fair value of the employee stock option awards at the grant dates in accordance
with the new accounting recommendations, the Company�s earnings for the year and earnings per share would have been changed to the
following pro forma amounts:

2005 2004

As reported Pro forma As reported Pro forma

Earnings $ 20,530 $ 19,988 $ 13,668 $ 13,090

Earnings per common share:
     Basic $ 1.51 $ 1.47 $ 1.05 $ 1.01
     Diluted 1.46 1.42 1.01 0.96
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For stock options issued in 2002, the compensation cost for the year ended December 31, 2005 would have been $542 (2004 � $578).

(b) Long-term incentive plan:

During the year, the Company expensed $430 (2004 � nil) in costs related to the 2005 long-term incentive plan.
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CRYPTOLOGIC INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(In thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share disclosure and where indicated otherwise)

Years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

9. Commitments and contingencies:

(a) The Company has lease agreements for premises expiring at various periods up to July 2015. The future minimum annual rental
payments on the operating leases are as follows:

2006 $2,180
2007 2,088
2008 1,579
2009 1,216
2010 1,258
Thereafter 5,764

(b) The Company and its subsidiaries are involved in certain claims and litigation arising out of the ordinary course and conduct of
business including intellectual property matters. Management assesses such claims, and if considered likely to result in material
exposure and where the amount of the claim is quantifiable, provisions for loss are made based on management�s assessment of
the likely outcome. Management does not provide for claims that are considered unlikely to result in a significant loss, claims for
which the outcome is not determinable or claims where the amount of the loss cannot be reasonably estimated. Any settlements
or awards under such claims are provided for when reasonably determinable.

(c) In order to manage a portion of its exposure to foreign currency risk, the Company enters into, from time to time, forward foreign
exchange contracts to purchase Canadian dollars. As at December 31, 2005, there were no such contracts outstanding. The fair
value of contracts outstanding as at December 31, 2004 was $48.

In 2005, the Company recognized a total foreign exchange loss of $1,761 (2004 � $396).
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CRYPTOLOGIC INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(In thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share disclosure and where indicated otherwise)

Years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

10. Earnings per common share:

Basic and diluted earnings per common share were calculated using the weighted average common shares and weighted average potential
common shares.

2005 2005

(000�s)

Weighted average number of common
  shares outstanding 13,588 12,971
Weighted average number of common
  shares outstanding - diluted 14,067 13,586

The computations for basic and diluted earnings per common share are as follows:

2005 2004

Earnings $ 20,530 $ 13,668

Earnings per common share:
    Basic $ 1.51 $ 1.05
    Diluted 1.46 1.01

Options to purchase 54,338 common shares (2004 � 164,550) were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share as the
exercise price exceeded the average market price of common shares for the reporting year.
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CRYPTOLOGIC INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(In thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share disclosure and where indicated otherwise)

Years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

11. Income taxes:

The income tax provision differs from the amount which would be obtained by applying the Canadian statutory income tax rate to the
earnings before income taxes. The following explains the major differences:

2005 2004

Earnings before income taxes $ 22,036 $ 16,541

Income taxes based on a statutory rate of 36.12%
  (2004 - 36.12%) $ 7,960 $ 5,975
Increase (decrease) in income taxes resulting from:
    Lower effective income tax rates in foreign jurisdictions (4,213) (6,537)
    Non-recognition of tax benefit of losses � 1,372
    Non-recognition of other temporary differences � (39)
    Tax cost of non deductible items 1,084 1,621
    Recognition of tax benefit of non-capital
       loss carry back (1,041) �
    Recognition of benefit on non-capital loss carry-forward (1,942) (595)
    Future income tax liability related to foreign exchange gains 377 2,249
    Release of valuation allowance (502) (1,687)
    Other (217) 514

Actual income tax expense $ 1,506 $ 2,873

20

CRYPTOLOGIC INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(In thousands of U.S. dollars, except per share disclosure and where indicated otherwise)

Years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004

11. Income taxes (continued):
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The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the future income tax assets and future income tax
liabilities at December 31, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

2005 2004

Future income tax assets:
    Non-capital tax losses carried forward $ � $ 163
    Deferred financing charges � 14
    Capital assets 42 394
    Amounts not deductible for income taxes 657 523

699 1,094

Future income tax liabilities:
    Capital items (301) �
    Unrealized foreign exchange gains (2,626) (2,249)

(2,927) (2,249)

Less valuation allowance 183 685

Net future income tax liabilities $ (2,411) $ (1,840)

12. Related party transactions:

The Company currently engages the services of a law firm in which a member of the Board of Directors is a partner. Fees paid to this
firm were $589 (2004 � $487).

During the course of the year, the Company purchased software from another company in which a member of the Company�s executive
has a personal interest. Payments to this individual in 2005, relating to this transaction amounted to $145 with an amount of $43
contingent upon performance in future periods.

13. Fair values of financial instruments:

The carrying values of financial instruments, which consist of cash and cash equivalents, security deposits, short-term investments,
accounts receivable and other, user funds on deposit, accounts payable and accrued liabilities and user funds held on deposit,
approximate their fair values due to the short-term nature of these instruments.
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14. Differences between Canadian and United States generally accepted accounting principles:

The Company�s consolidated balance sheets and consolidated statements of earnings, retained earnings and cash flows have been prepared
in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles (�Canadian GAAP�). In 2005 and 2004, the Company�s accounting
policies with respect to measurement items conforms, in all material aspects applicable to the Company, with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States (�U.S. GAAP�).

Future accounting changes:

In December 2004, the U.S. Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FASB Statement No. 123 Share-Based Payments (�FAS123R�),
amending the accounting for share-based payments. FAS123R requires that compensation costs relating to share-based payment
transactions be measured and recognized in financial statements based on the fair value of the equity or liability instruments issued. The
requirements of this standard will be effective for the Company beginning January 1, 2006. Management is still in the process of
determining the impact, if any, on the Company from its current policy on stock-based compensation.
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EXHIBIT 2

Management�s Discussion and Analysis

INTRODUCTION

The following report contains management�s discussion and analysis (�MD&A�) of CryptoLogic�s consolidated results of operations and financial
condition for the year ended December 31, 2005 in comparison with the year ended December 31, 2004, and should be read in conjunction with
the audited consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. This MD&A is dated March 15, 2006.

CryptoLogic and our subsidiaries are referred to collectively as �CryptoLogic�, �the Company�, �we�, �us�, and �our� throughout this MD&A, unless
otherwise specified.

All currency amounts are in US dollars, unless otherwise indicated. Some figures and percentages may not total exactly due to rounding.

The Company and its subsidiaries maintain a set of disclosure controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be
disclosed in filings made pursuant to Multilateral Instrument 52-109 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in the Canadian Securities Administrators� rules and forms. The Company�s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have
evaluated the disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2005 and concluded that the current disclosure controls and procedures are
effective at the reasonable assurance level.

Statements in this document, which are not historical, are forward-looking statements made pursuant to the safe harbour provisions of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. It should be noted that the forward-looking statements in this document are based on
management�s best estimates of the current operating environment. These statements are related to, but not limited to, our operations, anticipated
financial performance, business prospects and strategies. Forward-looking information typically contains statements with words such as �may�,
�would�, �could�, �should�, �will�, �intend�, �seek�, �propose�, �anticipate�, �believe�, �expect�, �plan� or similar expressions suggesting future outcomes. Such
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forward-looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors, which could cause actual results to differ materially from future
results expressed, projected or implied by such forward-looking statements. Such factors include, but are not limited to, risks associated with the
Company�s financial conditions, legal risks associated with Internet gaming and risks of government legislation and regulation, market
acceptance and technological changes, dependence on licensees and key licensees, international operations and increased competition. A
description of these factors can be found in the section contained herein titled �Risks and Uncertainties.� CryptoLogic does not intend, and does
not assume any obligations, to update these forward-looking statements.

Marvel and all related character names and the distinctive likeness thereof: TM and © 2006 Marvel Characters, Inc. All rights reserved. www.marvel.com

CryptoLogic Management�s Discussion & Analysis
For the year ended December 31, 2005

-1-

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Founded in 1995, CryptoLogic is a pioneer and a global leading software developer and services provider to the Internet gaming market. Today,
we are one of the industry�s longest-established publicly traded online gaming software companies. Headquartered in Toronto, CryptoLogic has
software development operations in Canada. Our wholly-owned subsidiary, WagerLogic Limited (�WagerLogic�), provides licensing, e-cash
management and customer support services for our Internet gaming software to third-party gaming operators around the world through offices in
Cyprus and the UK.

CryptoLogic offers a complete online gaming solution, which is comprised of:

1. A broad, turn-key Internet-based game suite featuring:
� more than 160 casino table and slot games
� player-to-player poker
� multi-player bingo
� multi-languages (English, Spanish, Greek, Japanese, Chinese, French, German, Italian)
� multi-currencies (US dollars, British pound sterling and Euros)
� multi-platforms (download, non-download (Java and Flash), wireless);

2. A proprietary e-cash management system; and

3. 24/7 multi-language customer support.

Since inception, our software has processed approximately $39 billion in secure wagers for 2.4 million registered players in 240 countries
worldwide.

WagerLogic is responsible for the licensing of our software products and services to a select international client base (�licensees� or �customers�).
As at December 31, 2005, we had 9 licensees located around the world, including well-known UK brand name and land-based gaming
organizations. Our licensees operate under government authority where their Internet business subsidiaries are domiciled, principally in the
Netherlands Antilles, and Alderney, in the British Isles.

Substantially all of our revenue is of an ongoing nature. WagerLogic�s licensees pay an ongoing fee for the licensing and support of our software,
calculated as a percentage of each licensee�s level of activity. In 2005, 7% of our revenue came from other sources, including software
customization and advertising services.
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Historically, revenue has been seasonal with slower sales in the summer months (our second and third fiscal quarters), when players tend to
spend less time indoors and at their computers. Typically, our first and fourth fiscal quarters (during the winter and fall seasons) are our
strongest revenue periods.

CryptoLogic Management�s Discussion & Analysis
For the year ended December 31, 2005

-2-

BUSINESS CONDITIONS

2005 marks the 10 year anniversary of both CryptoLogic and the global Internet gaming market � and there has been significant growth in both
our company and the industry over the past decade.

The Internet casino and Internet poker markets, the core areas of our business, are expected to continue to show strong growth. In 2010, industry
experts forecast casino to grow more than 40% to approximately $4 billion, and poker to more than double to $6 billion (source: Global Betting
and Gaming Consultants, December 2005).

While online gaming continues to promise vast potential � expected to account for only 7% of the global gaming revenue in 2010 (source: Global
Betting and Gaming Consultants, December 2005) � the market is already dominated by major operators. Competition is intensifying for players
and market position. The industry is also experiencing signs of consolidation as operators increase market share through acquisition.

In order to grow and remain a market leader, software providers must be able to offer a strong value proposition to their customers to help them
respond to players that are increasingly sophisticated and demanding more choice. We must offer an expanding array of new and innovative
products and services that enhance the game experience and create opportunities to market to players in order to help customers attract, retain
and re-activate players.

STRATEGY UPDATE

CryptoLogic�s growth strategy is designed to capitalize on the growth in the key product areas and markets of the global online gaming industry,
and to produce cash earnings despite continuing regulatory uncertainty and an increasingly competitive and sophisticated business environment.
Our strategy has been and continues to be based on three core imperatives:

1. InternationalDiversification � We aim to generate revenue and maximize profitability in key markets for Internet gaming with major
international brand name customers. In 2005, more than 65% of our licensees� revenue was derived from international players, which
compares favorably to our goal of 60%. In our view, this geographic diversification mitigates the risks of regulatory uncertainty in any
one jurisdiction, while maximizing growth opportunities in key regions around the world.

2. Market-OrientedSolutions � Our product strategy is to continually enhance and expand our offering to increase the entertainment value
of our games for players to encourage repeat business, and thereby grow sustainable revenue for our customers and CryptoLogic. We
achieved solid double-digit growth in our Internet casino business � up 11% in 2005 versus a year ago � and in a gaming sector that is
considered more developed. Our Internet poker fees outpaced the industry � up 126% in 2005, which compared favourably to the industry
growth rate of 86% (source: Global Betting and Gaming Consultants, December 2005).

CryptoLogic Management�s Discussion & Analysis
For the year ended December 31, 2005
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In 2005, we introduced more than 20 new Internet casino games. We developed the world�s first and only play-for-real, slot version of the
highly popular gem-matching game, Bejeweled; and the Internet�s first and only multi-currency jackpot video slot games featuring
popular Marvel action characters such as The Hulk, Daredevil and X-Men �which brands have been exclusively licensed for
CryptoLogic-developed games.

We added new high-speed Lightning� games and 10 new lower-limit games to offer players a broader choice of poker games at their
desired speed and levels. We also launched a Greek language Internet poker site for William Hill, the first deployment of
CryptoLogic-developed online poker software in a European language.

We introduced and enhanced our back-office and decision-support tools to help our licensees better understand, respond and target
market their players.

3. RegulatoryLeadership � CryptoLogic is committed to the highest standards of transparency and regulatory compliance, and is one of the
world�s few providers with government-approved gaming software. We continue to follow disciplined regulatory practices comparable to
stringent land-based gaming standards, which subject our company, key personnel, systems and software product to ongoing
independent government review.

Strategic Performance Measures

In 2005, CryptoLogic continued to deliver profitable growth, positive operating cash flow and improved return on equity. The following table
sets out key financial performance indicators as measures of our progress:

(In thousands of US dollars, except per share data) 2005 2004 2003

Income Statement
Revenue $ 86,307 $ 63,714 $ 44,211
EBITDA(1) $ 22,303 $ 17,337 $ 11,496
Earnings $ 20,530 $ 13,668 $ 9,441
Fully Diluted EPS $ 1.46 $ 1.01 $ 0.75

Financial Position
Cash Flow From Operating Activities $ 34,721 $ 18,919 $ 38,700
Total Cash(2) $ 99,134 $ 85,964 $ 67,307
Working Capital $ 73,569 $ 62,818 $ 44,733
Dividend Per Share/Quarter(3) $ 0.07 $ 0.05 $ 0.03

Value Measure
Return on Equity 25% 22% 21%

(1) Management believes EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization) is a useful supplemental
measure of performance. However, because EBITDA is not a recognized measure under generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) and does not have a standardized meaning, it may not be comparable across different companies.

CryptoLogic Management�s Discussion & Analysis
For the year ended December 31, 2005
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CryptoLogic reconciles EBITDA to earnings as follows:

(In thousands of US dollars, except per share data) 2005 2004 2003

Earnings $ 20,530 $ 13,668 $ 9,441
Income taxes 1,506 2,873 1,213
Interest (3,627) (1,293) (691)
Amortization 3,894 2,089 1,533

EBITDA $ 22,303 $ 17,337 $ 11,496

(2) Total cash includes cash and cash equivalents, security deposits and short term investments.

(3) CryptoLogic�s inaugural quarterly dividend of $0.03 per common share (annual rate of $0.12) was declared on September 10,
2003, and paid November 24, 2003. On November 4, 2004, CryptoLogic�s Board approved an increase in our quarterly
dividend from $0.03 to $0.05 per common share (annual rate of $0.20), commencing with the quarterly dividend paid
December 15, 2004. On the dividend�s third anniversary, a subsequent increase to $0.07 per common share (annual rate of
$0.28) was announced on November 1, 2005, commencing with the quarterly dividend paid December 15, 2005.

ABILITY TO DELIVER RESULTS

CryptoLogic�s competitive advantages have been key to our growth and financial performance, and we believe, will continue to be integral to our
future.

High quality licensees

CryptoLogic works with some of the best known international brand name customers in the industry. In a market where player trust is critical,
we emphasize customer quality over the number of customers. Our decade of experience has proven that those operators with a trusted brand
and an established user base to cross-market new offerings will grow sustainable online businesses. In competition with hundreds of gaming
sites on the Internet, our licensees must also be committed to market in order to effectively vie for player attention.

CryptoLogic�s disciplined customer strategy continues to produce strong results. We have intentionally rationalized our licensee base in recent
years to focus on a core group of substantial name brand online and land-based operators. While the number of customers has declined to 9 in
2005 from a high of 21 in 2003, CryptoLogic�s revenue and earnings have increased 95% and 117% respectively during that same period.

In 2005, Betfair, one of our poker software licensees, decided to bring its poker software in-house, in line with its long term strategy to own and
operate all of its core products. Betfair is uniquely positioned with significant internal technical expertise, while our other customers � who are
primarily gaming and/or casino organizations � continue to benefit from the greater liquidity, outsourced technical expertise and expanding
product offering developed by CryptoLogic.

CryptoLogic Management�s Discussion & Analysis
For the year ended December 31, 2005
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Betfair will continue its exclusive agreement with WagerLogic until June 2006, with an option to extend until January 2007. Regardless of when
Betfair leaves between June 2006 and January 2007, WagerLogic will receive fees from Betfair such that we anticipate no material effect on
CryptoLogic�s 2006 results. We expect that revenue and player growth from continuing licensees in both poker and casino will help offset
Betfair�s departure and contribute to continued positive momentum into 2007, along with the potential signing of new licensees that would
enhance expected growth.

CryptoLogic�s record of growing revenue and earnings validates our commitment to work with a targeted group of major licensees to generate
the highest returns. Our emphasis is on growing the businesses of our existing customers who continue to experience significant organic growth,
while we seek opportunities to add one or two substantial new customers each year that meet our strict criteria.

Comprehensive and innovative product portfolio

In an industry characterized by a proliferation of gaming sites, we design our product suite to enable our licensees to satisfy broad player
preferences in order to attract more players, generate longer play time and extend the player life value and revenue potential. We conduct
extensive player research and competitive benchmarking to drive our software development as well as seek and enter into strategic exclusive
partnerships with premier consumer brands such as Marvel and Bejeweled to enhance the trust and entertainment value of our game offering.

CryptoLogic delivers a comprehensive product portfolio across the casino, poker and bingo markets. We continually expand our online game
mix with the latest innovations and entertainment concepts to appeal to increasingly sophisticated players wanting more choice and a more
engaging experience.

Internet casino � Our largest revenue and profit contributor is from online casino � a core market that accounts for more than 20% of global online
gaming revenue (source: Global Betting and Gaming Consultants, December 2005). We achieved 11% growth in 2005 casino revenue over 2004
� 20% in Q4 2005 over last year�s fourth quarter. We continually invest in market research and product research and development to ensure a
succession of new game concepts, themes and variations to create marketing opportunities for our licensees. This helps to re-energize players,
keeps them coming back and drives incremental revenue.

CryptoLogic is at the forefront of bringing the latest product innovations and concepts to Internet gaming. We have introduced a number of
unique games to the Internet � the first ever and only British pub-style Fruit Machines; the first to offer a play-for-real slot version of Bejeweled;
the first and only online slots featuring Marvel Super Heroes; and our own patented progressive jackpot slot, Millionaires Club�. Our expertise in
offering the depth and complexity of the modern-style casino games demanded by online gamers should contribute to our continued growth and
market leadership in this lucrative game area.

CryptoLogic Management�s Discussion & Analysis
For the year ended December 31, 2005
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Internet poker � Online poker has grown quickly to become our second largest profit contributor since we expanded into this large, untapped
game area three years ago. It is another core market representing more than 20% of the Internet gaming revenue worldwide (source: Global
Betting and Gaming Consultants, December 2005). Internet poker is a fast-growing sector dominated by sizeable poker rooms, where attracting
and retaining a critical mass of players is key to success. The continuous presence of many players in a virtual room (liquidity) allows players to
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find a game at the stake they want, when they want, around the clock. By directing the players of all our poker licensees � among the largest
gaming brands online and on-land � into a central poker room, we offer a well-populated poker network that currently attracts more than 9,000
poker players simultaneously from around the globe � up from over 8,000 at the 2005 year end.

In Internet poker, we also continually expand our variety of games and tournament capabilities, and invest in our system scalability to provide
the capacity for increasing traffic and volumes at our licensees� poker sites. Our expansive poker network and wide range of games, stakes and
tournament offerings have translated into a 126% growth in our poker fees in 2005 compared to a year ago. We expect Internet poker to continue
to be a strong growth driver in 2006.

Customer service and support

Licensee competition for players is intense and the cost of player acquisition has risen significantly. To assist our licensees in retaining players
and re-activating lapsed accounts, we have invested significantly in our customer relationship management solution. We have introduced and
improved our back-office offering with sophisticated business intelligence, data warehousing and marketing tools to assist licensees in
understanding, servicing and building one-on-one relationships with their players.

Regulatory leadership and public company record

Trust is vital for our business, our customers, and our industry. This is why CryptoLogic has committed to strong corporate governance and
compliance � and demonstrated a long-standing history of public company disclosure and regulatory leadership.

Regulatory leadership � CryptoLogic has consistently said that Internet gaming should be regulated for the protection of players and the integrity
of the industry. We are one of the few software providers worldwide who have earned government-certification in multiple, �tier-one�
jurisdictions. We are subject to stringent requirements similar to those found in land-based gaming, including intensive government probity
review of directors, senior management and key personnel, as well as rigorous independent third-party testing and ongoing gaming software
review. This adherence to high standards of government approval is an important competitive advantage. Our regulatory compliance enables us
to offer licensees a choice of regulated markets for their online businesses. It also enhances our credibility and marketability as more
jurisdictions view regulation as the best solution for safe and responsible online gaming.

CryptoLogic Management�s Discussion & Analysis
For the year ended December 31, 2005
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Given our regulatory experience, we are positioning for the pending implementation of The Gambling Act 2005 in the United Kingdom, and to
offer this jurisdiction as an option for our customers, provided the British government establishes a commercially-attractive marketplace. In
enabling the regulation of Internet gaming for the first time in the UK, the Act opens the door to a large, credible and stable industry in a
regulated and licensed environment. While the underlying rules and codes have yet to be finalized, it is expected that application for online
gaming licenses can be made starting January 2007 in advance of the new regulatory regime becoming fully operational by September 2007. In
the meantime, we are planning to invest in initiatives to position our company for a regulated UK market, and doing our part to provide input to
the process of developing the final legislative codes.

Public company disclosure and compliance � CryptoLogic�s status as a public company traded on three senior exchanges � the Toronto Stock
Exchange, NASDAQ National Market and the Main Market of the London Stock Exchange � subjects us to the highest standards of corporate
governance and disclosure. While the past year has seen a growing number of new high profile companies come to the public markets,
CryptoLogic has demonstrated a steady record of performance and disclosure. We are one of the Internet gaming industry�s first publicly listed
companies since 1996. Our corporate governance and compliance of our products and business are competitive advantages for CryptoLogic.
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Financial strength and performance

CryptoLogic has a proven record for revenue growth, positive operating profit, healthy cash flow and no debt since our first full year of
operation. The strength of our balance sheet gives customers the assurance that we have the resources to invest in our product solutions today
and in the future. We have the financial flexibility to pay a quarterly cash dividend and repurchase shares through normal course purchases, as
appropriate. Our solid financial position also means we can consider potential opportunities to accelerate our growth plans.

OVERVIEW OF RESULTS

On December 31, 2005, CryptoLogic completed its tenth year of operations with record revenue and earnings. Revenue of $86.3 million (2004:
$63.7 million) was up 35% year-over-year, driven by increasing fees from both our online casino and poker software.

Owing to new product enhancements and the growing liquidity of our licensees� central poker room, poker fees rose 126%, reaching $27.0
million (2004: $12.0 million). In Internet casino, our revenue rose 11% to $53.0 million (2004: $47.9 million), representing double-digit growth
in this more developed market. We attributed our continued growth in casino to the addition of more than 20 new games to our gaming suite,
particularly the immediate appeal of our new Marvel-branded games and online slot version of Bejeweled. In addition, our customer relationship
solution and tools are helping licensees to attract and retain players.

Other revenue, which includes software customization and advertising services, accounted for 7% of CryptoLogic�s total revenue (2004: 4%).

CryptoLogic Management�s Discussion & Analysis
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EBITDA(1)     increased 29% to $22.3 million in 2005 (2004: $17.3 million). EBITDA(1) margin as a percentage of revenue remained solid at
26% (2004: 27%), which takes into account certain unusual costs during the fourth quarter of 2005 as described below (see Software
Development Costs). Increased revenue generation resulted in a 50% rise in earnings to $20.5 million, or $1.46 per diluted share (2004: $13.7
million or $1.01 per diluted share).

Once again, CryptoLogic finished the year with positive operating cash flow and a strong balance sheet. Cash, cash equivalents and short term
investments, including security deposits of $1.5 million, totaled $99.1 million (2004: $86.0 million). Working capital grew to $73.6 million
(2004: $62.8 million), after the payment of quarterly dividends totaling $3.0 million (2004: $1.8 million) and the repurchase of $9.2 million of
CryptoLogic shares through our Normal Course Issuer Bids.

CryptoLogic�s 2005 performance reflected the continued success of a proven strategy centered on international diversification, product expansion
and regulatory compliance. We entered the new year with the financial strength to continue the effective implementation of this strategy focused
on our primary markets of Internet casino and Internet poker.

The following table presents selected financial data for each of the three most recent financials years of the Company on a consolidated basis:

For the years ended December 31, 2005
%

of Revenue 2004
%

of Revenue 2003

%
of

Revenue
(In thousands of US dollars, except per
share data)

Revenue $ 86,307 100.0% $ 63,714 100.0% $ 44,211 100.0%
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For the years ended December 31, 2005
%

of Revenue 2004
%

of Revenue 2003

%
of

Revenue
Expenses
    Operating costs 52,658 61.0% 39,975 62.7% 27,204 61.5%
    General and administrative 7,642 8.9% 6,028 9.5% 5,161 11.7%
    Software development costs 3,287 3.8% � � � �
    Finance 417 0.5% 374 0.6% 350 0.8%
    Amortization 3,894 4.5% 2,089 3.3% 1,533 3.5%

67,898 78.7% 48,466 76.1% 34,248 77.5%

Earnings before undernoted 18,409 21.3% 15,248 23.9% 9,963 22.5%
Interest income 3,627 4.2% 1,293 2.1% 691 1.6%

Earnings before income taxes 22,036 25.5% 16,541 26.0% 10,654 24.1%

Income taxes
    Current 935 1.0% 1,033 1.6% 1,213 2.7%
    Future 571 0.7% 1,840 2.9% � �

1,506 1.7% 2,873 4.5% 1,213 2.7%

Earnings $ 20,530 23.8% $ 13,668 21.5% $ 9,441 21.4%

EBITDA(1) $ 22,303 25.8% $ 17,337 27.2% $ 11,496 26.0%
Total assets $ 154,398 $ 124,222 $ 86,066 �
Dividend per share/quarter(3) $ 0.07 $ 0.05 $ 0.03 �

(1) Refer to EBITDA note on pages 4 and 5.
(3) Refer to Dividend note on pages 5.
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The strength of our business is reflected in the proven performance of our software solutions and increasing transaction processing volumes. In
2005 alone, we processed more than $13 billion in secure wagers.

2005
%

of Growth 2004
%

of Growth 2003
%

of Growth

Registered Users (000�s)(4) 2,400 20% 2,000 18% 1,700 21%

Number of Transactions (000�s) 819,000 30% 631,000 51% 417,000 43%

Processing Volumes 13.64 56% 8.75 59% 5.51 71%
(US$ billions)
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(4) 2005 and 2004 user numbers exclude licensees responsible for their own e-cash system

Number of Registered
Users(4)

(millions)

Number of Transactions
(millions)

Processing Volumes
(US$ billions)

Since inception, our software has processed approximately $39 billion in secure wagers.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenue

CryptoLogic achieved record revenue for the year ended December 31, 2005. Revenue of $86.3 million rose 35% (2004: $63.7 million), which
exceeded our long term goal of growing year-over-year revenue by a minimum of 20%. In 2005, revenue growth was led by increasing fees
from both Internet poker and Internet casino.

CryptoLogic Management�s Discussion & Analysis
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Fees or licensing revenue from our casino and bingo businesses are calculated as a percentage of a licensee�s level of activity in its online casino
or bingo site. By contrast, fees from online poker are based on a percentage of the licensee�s �rake� per hand in regular or ring games (the rake is
typically 5% of the pot, up to a maximum amount per hand) or fixed fees for entry into poker tournaments.

Internet casino

In the more established yet expanding Internet casino market, revenue increased 11% to $53.0 million (2004: $47.9 million). We attributed our
continued expansion in this area to the addition of more than 20 new casino games in the last year including:

� 12 new multi-line video slot and jackpot games with added elements of skill through arcade-style bonus rounds;
� a multi-line version of the Millionaires Club(TM)progressive jackpot game, a huge favorite among players having awarded two

million-dollar-plus jackpots in 2005;
� the Company's two first-ever scratch cards; and
�  the Internet�s first and only online slot versions of Bejeweled and Marvel-themed Super Heroes like The Hulk, Daredevil and X-Men,

which are contributing meaningful revenue, and already represent more than 10% of licensees� casino revenue in December 2005.

Internet casino remains our core business, representing 61% of our total revenue in 2005 (2004: 75%). While this game area continued to grow
in absolute dollar terms, casino�s representation declined as a percentage of revenue due to the relative high-growth of our poker business.
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We experienced strong growth in casino in 2005. We intend for this positive momentum to continue into 2006 as we continue to invest in
delivering a succession of new product innovations that are key growth drivers in the Internet casino market.

Internet poker

Owing to new product enhancements and the growing liquidity of our licensees� central poker network � where the number of simultaneous
players rose to more than 8,000 at the end of 2005 from over 4,500 at last year end � our Internet poker fees rose 126% reaching $27.0 million
(2004: $12.0 million) and exceeded the industry growth rate of 86% (source: Global Betting and Gaming Consultants, December 2005).

Our Internet poker fees in absolute dollars accelerated each successive quarter in 2005. Strong gains in this high-growth market were driven by:

� the continued positive momentum and organic growth of our existing customers comprised of prominent online and land-based
operators that continue to leverage their brand strength and financial resources to cross-market poker to their established player base;
and

CryptoLogic Management�s Discussion & Analysis
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� new poker software enhancements and features including high-speed Lightning(TM)games and an expanded range of lower-limit tables
to offer gamers a wider range of stakes, levels and speed of play.

Poker has grown to be a significant revenue contributor. It accounted for 31% of our 2005 revenue (2004: 19%), exceeding our objective of 25%
for the year. Given the positive prospects of the online poker market and ongoing enhancements to our own poker offering, we expect poker to
continue to grow at strong double-digit rates and remain a meaningful proportion of our revenue in 2006.

Internet bingo

Our remaining licensing fee revenue from game offerings was derived from online bingo, which was $0.6 million or less than 1% of revenue
(2004: $1.2 million or 2%). The decline reflects the Company�s focus on its core businesses of Internet casino and Internet poker. We plan to
continue this focus for the foreseeable future.

Other revenue

Other revenue increased to $5.7 million (2004: $2.6 million), which included fees for software customization and advertising and marketing
services. This accounted for 7% of total revenue (2004: 4%). The year-over-year dollar increase was mainly due to growing advertising and
marketing services fees generated through the Company�s gaming information portal and licensee support.

Product Diversification
(% of total revenue)

Internet casino & poker accounted for 92% of total revenue in 2005.

CryptoLogic Management�s Discussion & Analysis
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International diversification

CryptoLogic�s global strategy has resulted in a geographically-diversified business. This is aimed at mitigating the ongoing legislative
uncertainty in the US, minimize reliance on any one jurisdiction and benefit from near-term growth opportunities in overseas markets. In 2005,
licensees� revenue from international markets exceeded 65% of total revenue, up from 60% in 2004 and 40% as recently as 2002. Internationally,
our presence is concentrated in the UK and Continental Europe, which represented more than 30% and 30% respectively of licensees� total
revenue (2004: over 30% and 20% respectively).

Our strength in these markets is attributable to a customer roster that includes some of the most respected names in European gaming. The UK�s
2005 enactment of a new law to regulate online gaming for the first time in that country should continue to foster a favourable growth region for
the Internet gaming industry, for our customers and for CryptoLogic. We expect to maintain a fairly consistent geographic mix as our licensees
continue to pursue opportunities on both sides of the Atlantic, not taking into account the departure of Betfair, a UK customer (see Ongoing
Revenue) .

Licensees� international revenue
(% of total revenue)

Licensees' international revenue exceeded 65% in 2005.

Ongoing Revenue

CryptoLogic�s strong ongoing revenue stream reflects the strength of a revenue model based on building long-standing relationships with a
limited number of premium customers. In 2005, 93% (2004: 96%) of CryptoLogic�s revenue was generated from software licensing and services
contracts that are ongoing in nature and generally extend three years. Most of our major contracts have been renewed for the coming year, which
should bring a measure of stability to our revenue stream. While Betfair, one of our poker customers, will be departing between June of 2006
and January of 2007, we have received fees from Betfair such that our annual results for 2006 are not expected to be materially affected. We
have two licensee renewal situations in 2006 of which one is due to expire towards the end of that year, and the other customer was renewed in
January 2006 for multi-year agreements.
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In 2007, we expect that the organic growth of our long term customers in both casino and poker and incremental revenue derived from potential
new customers will contribute to offsetting the revenue impact arising from the Betfair departure.

Expenses

In 2005, the Company�s expenditures are classified into five categories: operating costs, general and administrative, software development costs,
finance, and amortization.

Total expenses were $67.9 million (2004: $48.5 million), largely in step with our 35% increase in revenue. Increases occurred across all
expenditure categories, with operating costs (which consist of development and support costs) accounting for 61% of total expenses, which
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reflected our ongoing commitment to innovation in order to maintain our competitive advantage in a fast-changing industry.

Total 2005 expenses rose progressively as a percentage of revenue compared with the prior year. This increase was due largely to $3.3 million in
costs incurred in the fourth quarter of 2005 associated with the expensing of capitalized software development and severances, which arose from
the Company�s decision to outsource some initiatives and consolidate certain development teams.

Implemented in the third quarter of 2004, CryptoLogic�s $12.5 million investment program, above and beyond our normal course expenditures,
was completed in 2005. Over the past six quarters, this 2004/2005 program was allocated as follows: $7.8 million in operating expenses and $4.7
million in capital expenditures (comprising $3.2 million for the purchase of capital assets and $1.5 million in capitalized software development
related to the investment program). While amortization expense will increase with the higher asset levels, operating costs should remain
relatively consistent as a percentage of revenue with increasing revenue and the cessation of the program. This trend should have a moderating
influence on total expenses and progressively enhance margins going forward.

Operating Costs

The Company�s operating costs are comprised of development and support costs, which include all personnel and equity compensation costs for
employee stock options and long term incentive program, licensee support, customer service costs and regulatory compliance-related
expenditures.

Development costs are expensed as incurred unless costs meet the criteria for deferral and amortization under generally accepted accounting
principles.

CryptoLogic Management�s Discussion & Analysis
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Total operating costs were $52.7 million, decreasing to 61% of revenue (2004: $40.0 million or 63%). We continued to invest in diversifying our
business in core areas to help customers grow market share and player loyalty. Increased expenses were attributable to:

� a succession of new casino games;
� expansion of the choice of games, stakes and tournament options in our poker software;
� an expanding system infrastructure to support increased player traffic and volumes, particularly in poker;
� improvement of our customer care and back-office offering with sophisticated business intelligence, data-mining and marketing tools to

help customers better understand and serve their players;
� continued regulatory compliance initiatives; and
� increased processing fees associated with growing financial transaction volumes.

Included in the above initiatives are $2.4 million in operating costs related to our major investment program to upgrade our gaming platform,
back-office tools and system and service infrastructure. These major investments, above and beyond our normal course expenditures, have
contributed to record revenue in 2005. We expect operating costs should remain relatively consistent as a percentage of revenue now that the
program is complete. Our investment in our business will remain proportionate to our growth, revenue generation and market potential.

As important as our financial investment in the growth of our business is our investment in people to ensure our competitive advantage and the
ability to deliver market-leading innovations. At December 31, 2005, CryptoLogic had 358 employees dedicated to implementing our strategy in
a competitive and increasingly sophisticated market, up from 291 a year earlier.
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At year-end, we had 199 employees in development and compliance, representing 57% of the total. Given the importance and distinctiveness of
the core aspects of our business, we have specialized teams in each strategic development area. In 2005, 36% of our development staff was in
casino software, 26% in poker software, 24% in product and back-office support and 14% in global IT and operations support. This
representation should not materially change in the foreseeable future.

CryptoLogic Management�s Discussion & Analysis
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2005 Employee Breakdown

86% of employees were in development, compliance, sales, licensee & customer support.

General and Administrative Costs

General and administrative (G&A) costs include overhead and administrative costs, travel expenses and professional fees relating to our
business development, infrastructure and public company listings.

In 2005, G&A expenses of $7.6 million (2004: $6.0 million) represented 9% of revenue, consistent with the previous year as a percentage of
revenue due to strong revenue generation in 2005. The increase in absolute terms reflected higher costs associated with a growing organization
and increased facilities and infrastructure expenditures. Given our larger company, G&A should remain relatively stable as a percentage of
revenue in the immediate future, although such costs are expected to rise modestly in tandem with our growth.

Software Development Costs

$3.3 million in costs were incurred during the fourth quarter of 2005 associated with the expensing of capitalized software development and
severances. These expenses arose from the Company�s decision to outsource specific projects. This approach combines the strengths of in-house
technical expertise with industry-leading external resources to bring innovative products to market faster. Together with the completion of the
2004/2005 investment program, this led to the consolidation and streamlining of certain development groups to optimize efficiency and use of
resources. We therefore reduced staff by 34 people to a company-wide headcount of 358 at year-end.

CryptoLogic Management�s Discussion & Analysis
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Finance Costs

Finance costs include bank charges and fees for bank drafts. These costs were $0.42 million (2004: $0.37 million) due to the increased use of
bank drafts for user withdrawals. Finance costs remained less than 1% of revenue in both 2005 and 2004.

Amortization

Amortization costs are based on the estimated useful lives of the assets and include the amortization of our investments in computer equipment,
leasehold improvements, software and software licenses to support our business activities.

Amortization expense was $3.9 million (2004: $2.1 million). The increase reflected the higher investments in computer equipment, leasehold
improvements, software and licenses to support our growing organization and the Company�s major investment program. Accordingly, these
expenses are expected to grow in absolute dollars, but increase moderately as a percentage of revenue, due to the growth of our company and as
amortization for capital expenditures related to our investment program continues into 2006.

EBITDA(1)

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA(1) ) increased 29% to $22.3 million (2004: $17.3 million). EBITDA(1)

margin, or EBITDA(1) as a percentage of revenue, remained fairly consistent at 26% (2004: 27%), which takes into account certain unusual costs
as described above (see Software Development Costs).

EBITDA(1) is expected to continue to deliver growth in absolute terms in 2006, and EBITDA(1) margin should progressively increase as we
continue to benefit from higher revenue as a result of our investments and improving operational leverage.

EBITDA(1)

(US$ millions)

EBITDA(1) grew by 29% to a record $22.3 million in 2005.
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Interest Income

As a result of growing cash and cash equivalents and higher interest yield, interest income more than doubled to $3.6 million (2004: $1.3
million).

Provision for Income Taxes

Income taxes were $1.5 million (2004: $2.9 million), including future income tax liabilities of $0.6 million primarily due to the effect of the
change in foreign exchange rates during the year. The decline in 2005 primarily resulted from tax benefits derived from previously unrecognized
tax losses . As we move into 2006, we expect tax rates to return to more historic levels.

Earnings
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Reflecting strong revenue growth as described above, CryptoLogic�s earnings rose 50% to $20.5 million or $1.46 per diluted share (2004: $13.7
million or $1.01 per diluted share).

CryptoLogic�s focus on delivering an expanding suite of market-responsive games and support tools that drive incremental revenue for our
customers in the proven, growing online casino and poker markets continue to contribute to strong bottom line performance. Both earnings and
margins should continue to trend positively as we benefit from improving operational leverage and realize increasingly higher revenue. We
continue to strive for long term net margins in excess of 20%.

Return on Equity

CryptoLogic�s return on shareholders� equity improved for the 4th consecutive year in 2005, reflecting consistent profit growth. Return on equity
was 25% (2004: 22%).

2005 2004 2003

Return on equity 25% 22% 21%

CryptoLogic has a well-established track record for solid investor returns.

Summary of Quarterly Results

CryptoLogic�s results may vary on a quarterly basis due to the seasonal nature of the online gaming industry. Historically, sales are slower in the
second and third quarters, as Internet usage moderates in the summer months when players tend to be outdoors. Typically, our first and fourth
quarters (during the winter and fall seasons) are our strongest revenue periods.
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Seasonality continued to play a factor as experienced in the second quarters of 2004 and 2005. Our performances in third quarters of 2004 and
2005, benefited from significant gains in online poker fees fuelled by ongoing enhancements to the range of games, stakes, levels and
tournament options offered through our poker software, which are helping customers attract increasing player traffic and capitalize on the
high-growth phase of this game area. The 2005 third quarter also enjoyed increasing contribution from our Internet casino business. This growth
was attributable to an array of new games and software capabilities that assisted our customers in attracting and retaining players by offering
more choice and enhanced entertainment value.

Despite our performance in our middle fiscal quarters in 2004 and 2005, we expect seasonality in our business to be a contributing factor in
casino and potentially in poker as that game area develops. However, as online gaming has become competitive and more sophisticated, and the
industry has become more market-oriented with new games, features and marketing initiatives that are increasingly important determinants in
driving quarterly performance.

The following table sets out selected unaudited financial information of CryptoLogic on a consolidated basis for the last eight quarters. For more
information, readers should refer to CryptoLogic�s 2005 and 2004 quarterly financial reports.

First Second Third Fourth Annual
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Fiscal 2005 Quarters
(In thousands of US dollars, except per share data)

Revenue $ 20,274 $ 19,923 $ 21,049 $ 25,061 $ 86,307
Interest income 637 874 967 1,149 3,627
Earnings 4,839 4,739 5,127 5,825 20,530
   Basic earnings per share $ 0.36 $ 0.34 $ 0.37 $ 0.44 $ 1.51
   Diluted earnings per share $ 0.34 $ 0.33 $ 0.36 $ 0.43 $ 1.46
Basic weighted average number of shares (000's) 13,573 13,736 13,681 13,363 13,588
Diluted weighted average number of shares (000's) 14,184 14,361 14,063 13,665 14,067

Fiscal 2004 Quarters
(In thousands of US dollars, except per share data)

First Second Third Fourth Annual

Revenue $ 15,224 $ 14,925 $ 15,616 $ 17,949 $ 63,714
Interest income 244 262 361 426 1,293
Earnings 3,821 3,197 2,856 3,794 13,668
   Basic earnings per share $ 0.30 $ 0.25 $ 0.22 $ 0.29 $ 1.05
   Diluted earnings per share $ 0.28 $ 0.23 $ 0.21 $ 0.27 $ 1.01
Basic weighted average number of shares (000's) 12,641 12,979 13,076 13,185 12,971
Diluted weighted average number of shares (000's) 13,419 13,734 13,642 13,871 13,586
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

CryptoLogic remained highly liquid and debt-free in 2005. Given our significant cash resources and undrawn credit facilities, we have the
financial flexibility to continue investing in the enhancement of our solutions and the growth of our business, pay dividends, repurchase our own
shares through issuer bids and consider prospective opportunities that may arise.

Total Cash Position

As of December 31, 2005, our total cash position grew to $99.1 million or $7.05 per diluted share (2004: $86.0 million or $6.33 per diluted
share), which comprised cash and cash equivalents, short term investments, and included security deposits of $1.5 million (2004: $7.0 million).

There was a shift in asset mix away from short term investments in favour of cash and cash equivalents during the year for more efficient cash
and yield management. As a result, cash and cash equivalents more than doubled to $94.4 million of current assets and short term investments
accounted for $3.2 million (2004: $43.2 million and $35.8 million, respectively).

We pledged $1.5 million in security deposits at year end (2004: $7.0 million), down from a year ago, due to more favourable security deposit
arrangements, which took effect in the second half of 2005. We maintain security on deposits as collateral granted to banks and payment
processors that process deposit transactions on our behalf.
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Total Cash Position
(US$ millions)

CryptoLogic remained highly liquid with total cash of $99.1 million at 2005 year end.
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Operating Activities

CryptoLogic deploys its positive cash flow to fund investment initiatives and drive long term growth. Operating cash flow increased
significantly to $34.7 million (2004: $18.9 million) due largely to higher earnings and a significant decline in security deposits required as
collateral to payment processors. As well, increased levels of accounts payable and accrued liabilities primarily resulted from deferred revenue
representing prepayments made by licensees with integrated e-cash accounts. In 2006, we expect operating cash flow to remain strong, but
return to more traditional levels in line with EBITDA(1).

Financing Activities

$7.2 million was used (2004: $6.7 million provided) for financing activities in 2005.

$5.0 million was raised from the exercise of stock options during the year (2004: $8.5 million). $9.2 million was applied to repurchase 509,700
shares in 2005 through the Company�s Normal Course Issuer Bids as described on page 23 of this MD&A.

A total of $3.0 million (2004: $1.8 million) was paid in quarterly cash dividends. This higher amount was attributed to an increase in our
quarterly cash dividend from $0.03 to $0.05 per share (an annual rate of $0.20) commencing with the dividend paid on December 15, 2004; and
a further increase to $0.07 per share (an annual rate of $0.28) commencing with the dividend paid on December 15, 2005.

While each future quarterly dividend is subject to Board approval based on our financial results for that particular period, we expect our track
record of strong revenue generation, consistent earnings and positive cash flow will allow CryptoLogic to continue paying dividends on a
regular basis.

Investing Activities

Investing activities provided cash of $23.7 million in 2005 (2004: $26.4 million used). This was largely due to a shift of short term investments
into cash and cash equivalents, in the amount of $32.6 million (2004: $19.0 million increase), for more efficient cash and interest yield
management in response to volatility in interest rates.

Additionally, cash used for capital expenditures amounted to $8.9 million (2004: $7.3 million), which related to purchases in the normal course
of business for hardware, software licenses, leasehold improvements and associated with our major investment program as discussed earlier.

CryptoLogic Management�s Discussion & Analysis
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Working Capital

CryptoLogic�s financial position remained highly liquid in 2005. Working capital increased by 17% to $73.6 million or $5.23 per diluted share as
at December 31, 2005 (2004: $62.8 million or $4.62 per diluted share). The year-over-year increase was primarily due to higher earnings and a
significant reduction in security deposit requirements with payment processors.

In the foreseeable future, we expect our cash needs to be funded through existing cash resources and operating cash flow. Our liquidity gives us
the financial flexibility to continue to invest in our business and take advantage of opportunities in our markets, consider potential acquisitions,
return earnings to shareholders in the form of dividends, and repurchase common shares under our Normal Course Issuer Bid.

Working Capital
(US$ millions)

Working capital grew 17% to $73.6 million in 2005.

User funds held on deposit

User funds held on deposit increased 37% to $26.0 million at December 31, 2005 (2004: $18.9 million). The increase reflects player confidence
and the growth of our licensees� online gaming businesses in both casino and poker (even excluding e-cash balances from licensees responsible
for their own e-cash processing). Cash related to user funds on deposit is segregated and shown separately as an asset and liability on the balance
sheet, and does not form part of the Company�s total cash position.

Capitalization

Since inception, CryptoLogic has had no debt and maintained this position at 2005 year-end along with unutilized credit facilities. As of
December 31, 2005, we had 13.3 million common shares and 1.1 million stock options outstanding.
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CryptoLogic entered 2005 with a Normal Course Issuer Bid, which authorized the buy back of up to 1.25 million common shares. We
repurchased and cancelled 270,500 shares at an average price of $19.32 under this bid before it expired on September 22, 2005. On September
26, 2005, the Board of Directors approved the renewal of our Normal Course Issuer Bid, which authorizes the Company to purchase up to 1.34
million common shares from September 28, 2005 to September 27, 2006. The Company bought back a further 239,200 shares at an average
price of $16.62 under our current 2005/2006 bid. In total, we repurchased 509,700 shares for $9.2 million in 2005. Our buy back programs allow
us to repurchase our shares on occasions when we believe that our share price does not reflect the underlying value of our Company.
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Cash commitments and contractual obligations

The following table summarizes our outstanding cash commitments as of December 31, 2005:

(In thousands of US dollars) Total
Less than

1 year
2-3

years
4-5

years
After 5
years

Long term debt � � � � �

Capital lease obligations � � � � �

Facility leases $ 14,085 $ 2,180 $ 3,667 $ 2,474 $ 5,764

Other long term liabilities � � � � �

Total outstanding cash commitments $ 14,085 $ 2,180 $ 3,667 $ 2,474 $ 5,764

Total cash commitments at the end of fiscal 2005 totaled $14.1 million (2004: $13.3 million). The Company has entered into lease agreements
for premises expiring at various periods up to July 2015.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

CryptoLogic makes significant investments in research and development to remain competitive with technology advancements and product
evolution in the global online gaming market. 57% of our workforce was comprised of research and development and compliance personnel at
2005 year end (2004: 61%).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CryptoLogic�s accounting policies are specified in the notes to our financial statements, in particular note 1. The accounting estimates discussed
below are considered particularly important as they require judgments by management. Management has instituted policies that are intended to
ensure these judgments are well controlled and consistently applied from period to period.
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Each time progressive jackpot casino games are played by an end user a specified amount is added to the �Jackpot�. The �Jackpot� is won by a
player on a random basis and is not predictive. Each �Jackpot� also has a minimum amount of prize money. The Company assumes the liability of
future �Jackpot� wins for its licensees. Management provides for the �Jackpot� based on frequency of each game played, history of wins and
minimum prize requirements.

The Company may receive from time to time claims for patent infringements on specific games licensed to licensees. Management reviews each
claim thoroughly to determine the validity of such claim. Where in management�s view there is some substance to a claim, management may
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accrue an amount to reflect a royalty agreement based on management�s past experience and market information. Adjustments will be made to
the accrual as new information is obtained or the claim settled.

The Company has a stock option plan where the amount of compensation expensed is determined using an option pricing model. In addition, the
Company provides a long term incentive program where the amount of the compensation expensed is determined based on estimated
performance criteria. Calculations for these plans with the necessary assumptions inherently mean judgments are required by management.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In 2005, $0.6 million (2004: $0.5 million) was paid in legal fees to Stikeman, Graham, Keeley and Spiegel LLP, a law firm that provides legal
services to the Company and in which the Chairman of the Company�s Board of Directors is a partner.

In 2005, the Company purchased software from another company in which an officer of the Company has a personal interest. Payments to this
executive in 2005, relating to this transaction, amounted to $0.15 million with an amount of $0.04 million contingent upon performance in future
periods.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

CryptoLogic operates in a rapidly changing environment that involves numerous risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond our control
and which could have a material adverse effect on our business, revenues, operating results and financial condition. The following discussion
highlights some of these risks and uncertainties.
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Industry Risks

Government Regulation

The Company and our licensees are subject to applicable laws in the jurisdictions in which they operate. At the present time, our licensees hold
government licenses to operate Internet gaming sites in two jurisdictions: Alderney in the British Isles and the Netherlands Antilles. Some
jurisdictions have introduced regulations attempting to restrict or prohibit Internet gaming, while other jurisdictions have taken the position that
Internet gaming is legal and have adopted or are in the process of considering legislation to regulate Internet gaming.

The Isle of Man and Alderney � both part of the British Isles � are already fully regulated environments for Internet gaming, based on high
standards consistent with land-based gaming. In April 2005, the UK enacted law to regulate online gaming for the first time in that jurisdiction.
The British government is currently drafting the underlying rules and codes to establish its new regulatory framework. The first online license
applications are expected to be accepted in January 2007, with licenses granted and operational by September 2007. However, there is no
assurance that the UK regulatory regime will provide a commercially-viable market and may create restrictions that can have a material adverse
effect on our customers, our business, revenues, operating results and financial condition.

While the UK and other European countries such as Malta and Gibraltar are adopting a regulated online gaming approach, opposing views are
developing in Europe. Some European countries, including Italy, Germany and Holland where there are state-owned monopolies, are taking
action aimed at banning foreign online gaming operators. Such actions by these European Union (EU) member states are in contrast with a
favourably-viewed ruling from the European Court of Justice and have prompted the European Commission (EC) to look at creating new
legislation that could harmonize online gaming within the EU, in line with the EC�s goal to encourage a free and open cross-border market.
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As companies and consumers involved in Internet gaming are located around the globe, including our licensees and their players, there is
uncertainty regarding which government has authority to regulate or legislate the industry. However, legislation and legal action designed to
restrict or prohibit Internet gaming may be adopted in the future in the United States or other jurisdictions.
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Future decisions may have a material impact on our operations and financial results. Existing legislation, including US federal and state statutes,
have been and could continue to be construed to prohibit or restrict gaming through the use of the Internet, and there is a risk that governmental
authorities may view us or our licensees as having violated such statutes. Therefore, there is a risk that criminal and civil proceedings, including
class actions brought by or on behalf of public entities or private individuals, could be initiated against us, our licensees, Internet service
providers, credit card processors, advertisers and others involved in the Internet gaming industry and could involve substantial litigation
expense, penalties, fines, injunctions or other remedies or restrictions being imposed upon us or our licensees or others while diverting the
attention of key executives. Such proceedings could have a material adverse effect on our business, revenues, operating results and financial
condition.

Given the legislative uncertainty, particularly in the US, we have geographically diversified our business and customer base in global markets
such as the UK that embrace online gaming. Nevertheless, there can be no assurance that additional legislation will not be proposed and passed
in the United States or in other potentially relevant jurisdictions to legislate or regulate various aspects of the Internet or the Internet gaming
industry. The burden of compliance with any such legislation may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results
of operations.

Payment Processing

Starting in December 2001, certain financial institutions in the United States ceased to accept online gaming transactions through their credit
cards due to the uncertainty regarding the legislation of Internet gaming in that country. This event has had a negative impact on the Internet
gaming industry as a whole, on our licensees, and on the Company, as evidenced by lower revenues in 2002. There can be no assurance that
other financial institutions or credit card issuers in the United States or other countries will not enact additional restrictions. Any such
developments would have a material adverse effect on our business, revenues, operating results and financial condition. However, we have
attempted to mitigate this risk with ongoing expansion of the Company�s alternate payment solutions and our focus on expanding our business in
Europe. In addition, the loss of a major payment option could have a material adverse affect on our business.

There can be no assurance that our systems and measures in place will or can guarantee protection against fraudulent activities and unauthorized
access from minors, which could have a material adverse effect on our reputation, business, revenue, operating results and financial conditions.
We attempt to mitigate these concerns with systematic controls and a dedicated fraud team. There is an audit trail for every transaction. As well,
we establish relationships with financial institutions that are subject to stringent banking regulations in their respective jurisdictions.
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E-commerce Law

In addition to regulations pertaining specifically to online gaming, we may become subject to any number of laws and regulations that may be
adopted with respect to the Internet and electronic commerce. New laws and regulations that address issues such as user privacy, pricing, online
content regulation, taxation, advertising, intellectual property, information security, and the characteristics and quality of online products and
services may be enacted. As well, current laws, which predate or are incompatible with the Internet and electronic commerce, may be applied
and enforced in a manner that restricts the electronic commerce market. The application of such pre-existing laws regulating communications or
commerce in the context of the Internet and electronic commerce is uncertain. Moreover, it may take years to determine the extent to which
existing laws relating to issues such as intellectual property ownership and infringement, libel and personal privacy are applicable to the Internet.

The adoption of new laws or regulations relating to the Internet, or particular applications or interpretations of existing laws, could decrease the
growth in the use of the Internet, decrease the demand for our products and services, increase our cost of doing business or could otherwise have
a material adverse affect on our business, revenues, operating results and financial condition.

Business Risks

E-commerce Adoption

The success of our electronic commerce services will depend in large part on the widespread adoption of the Internet for commercial
transactions. The marketplace for electronic commerce continues to develop, and is subject to frequent and rapid technological changes. It is not
possible to fully predict any trend and therefore any eventual impact on our operations and financial results.

Internet Viability and System Infrastructure and Reliability

The growth of Internet usage has caused frequent interruptions and delays in processing and transmitting data over the Internet. There can be no
assurance that the Internet infrastructure or the Company�s own network systems will continue to be able to support the demands placed on it by
the continued growth of the Internet, the overall online gaming industry or that of our customers.

The Internet�s viability could be affected due to delays in the development or adoption of new standards and protocols to handle increased levels
of Internet activity or due to increased government regulation. If critical issues concerning the commercial use of the Internet are not favorably
resolved (including security, reliability, cost, ease of use, accessibility and quality of service), if the necessary infrastructure is not sufficient, or
if other technologies and technological devices eclipse the Internet as a viable channel, this may negatively affect Internet usage, and our
business, revenues, financial condition and operating results will be materially adversely affected, and we may be forced to cease operations.
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End-users of our software depend on Internet service providers, online service providers and our system infrastructure for access to the Internet
gaming sites operated by our licensees. Many of these services have experienced service outages in the past and could experience service
outages, delays and other difficulties due to system failures, stability or interruption. Our licensees may lose customers as a result of delays or
interruption in service, including delays or interruptions relating to high volumes of traffic or technological problems. As a result, we may not be
able to meet a level of service that we have contracted for, and we may be in breach of our contractual commitments, which could materially
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adversely affect our business, revenues, operating results and financial condition.

Market Demand

The Internet gaming industry continues to rapidly evolve and is characterized by an increasing number of market entrants. The demand and
acceptance for new products and services are subject to a level of uncertainty and growing competition.

Substantially all of our revenues to date have been derived from the licensing of our Internet gaming software and the support of our associated
services through our licensing subsidiary. If the market develops more slowly than expected, or becomes saturated with competitors or
competitive products or if our services do not achieve market acceptance, our business, revenues, operating results and financial condition could
be materially adversely affected.

Security

Our Internet gaming software and electronic commerce services are reliant on technologies and network systems to securely handle transactions
and user information over the Internet, which may be vulnerable to system intrusions, unauthorized access or manipulation. As users become
increasingly sophisticated and devise new ways to commit fraud, our security and network systems may be tested and subject to attack. We have
experienced such system attacks in the past and implemented measures to protect against these intrusions. However, there is no assurance that all
such intrusions or attacks will or can be prevented in the future, and any system intrusion/attack may cause a delay, interruption or financial loss,
which could have a material adverse effect on our business, revenue, operating results and financial condition.

Reliance on Other Parties

Our electronic commerce product relies on Internet Service Providers (ISPs) to allow our licensees� customers and servers to communicate with
each other. If ISPs experienced service interruptions, it may prevent communication over the Internet and impair our ability to carry on business.
In addition, our ability to process e-commerce transactions depends on bank processing and credit card systems. In order to prepare for system
problems, we are strengthening and enhancing our current facilities and the redundancy of our system infrastructure and support. Nevertheless,
any system failure as a result of reliance on third parties, including network, software or hardware failure, which causes a delay or interruption in
our e-commerce services could have a material adverse effect on our business, revenues, operating results and financial condition.
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Competition

Licensees of our software compete with existing and established recreational services and products, in addition to other forms of entertainment.
Our success will depend, in part, upon our ability to enhance our products and services to keep pace with technological developments, respond
to evolving customer requirements and achieve continued market acceptance.

We compete with a number of public and private companies, which provide electronic commerce and/or Internet gaming software. In addition to
known current competitors, traditional land-based casino operators and other entities, many of which have significant financial resources, an
entrenched position in the market and name-brand recognition, may provide Internet gaming services in the future, and thus become our
competitors. As well, such companies may be able to require that their own software, rather than the software of others, including our gaming
software or our ECash software and services be used in connection with their payment mechanisms.

The barriers to entry into most Internet markets are relatively low, making them accessible to a wide number of entities and individuals. We
believe the principal competitive factors in our industry that create certain barriers to entry include reputation, technology, financial stability and
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resources, proven track record of successful operations, critical mass (particularly relating to online poker), regulatory compliance, independent
oversight and transparency of business practices. While these barriers will limit those able to enter or compete effectively in the market, it is
likely that new competitors will be established in the future, in addition to our known current competitors.

Increased competition from current and future competitors has and may in the future result in price reductions and reduced margins, or may
result in the loss of market share, any of which could materially adversely affect our business, revenues, operating results and financial
condition.

Dependence on Licensees

In fiscal 2005, our top 7 licensees accounted for 90% (2004: 93%) of our total revenue. In addition, a large majority of key licensees operate
from one licensing jurisdiction. The loss of one or more of these key licensees or the loss of their license in their respective jurisdictions could
have a material adverse effect on our business, revenues, operating results and financial condition.

Chargebacks

As a result of increasing player deposit levels, we are subject to higher exposure to chargebacks, which may also result in possible penalties and
shut off of the payment option. Chargebacks are any deposit transaction credited to a user�s account that is later reversed or repudiated. While the
Company has fraud control measures to minimize exposure and provision for chargebacks, this factor could have a material adverse effect on
our business, revenues, operating results and financial conditions.
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Foreign Operations

A significant portion of our revenues is derived from licensing and support fees in non-North American countries. The Company and our
licensees are subject to local laws and regulations in those jurisdictions in which they operate. While some jurisdictions have introduced
regulations designed to restrict Internet gaming, others have demonstrated acceptance of such activities. Currently, approximately 85
jurisdictions worldwide regulate or are in the process of legalizing some form of Internet gaming according to the River City Group, a
consultancy group that provides research to the interactive gaming industry.

As companies and consumers involved in Internet gaming, including the players of our licensees, are located around the globe, there is
uncertainty regarding exactly which government has jurisdiction or authority to regulate or legislate with respect to various aspects of the
industry. The uncertainty surrounding the regulation of Internet gaming in the various jurisdictions in which we operate could have a material
adverse effect on our business, revenues, operating results and financial condition.

There are certain difficulties and risks inherent in doing business internationally, including the burden of complying with multiple and
conflicting regulatory requirements, foreign exchange controls, potential restrictions or tariffs on gaming activities that may be imposed,
potentially adverse tax consequences and tax risks, and changes in the political and economic stability, regulatory and taxation structures, and
the interpretation thereof, of jurisdictions in which we, our subsidiaries and our licensees operate, and in which our licensees� customers are
located, all of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, revenues, operating results and financial condition.

There can be no assurance that we will be able to sustain or increase revenue derived from international operations or that we will be able to
penetrate linguistic, cultural or other barriers to new foreign markets.

Foreign Exchange
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Our financial results are reported in US currency, which is subject to fluctuations in respect of the currencies of the countries in which we
operate, including US dollars, British pound sterling, Euros, and Canadian dollars. Accordingly, fluctuations in the exchange rate of world
currencies could have a positive or negative effect on our reported results. We may utilize a hedging program from time to time and/or take
advantage of the natural hedge in having operations in multiple currencies to mitigate a portion of our currency risks, but there can be no
assurance that we will not experience currency losses in the future, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, revenues,
operating results and financial condition.

Legal Proceedings

We, and certain of our subsidiaries, may be involved in litigation arising in the ordinary course and conduct of business. The outcome of such
matters cannot be predicted with certainty, and could have a material adverse effect on our business, revenues, operating results and financial
condition.
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Moreover, from time to time, third parties have asserted and may continue to assert patent, trademark, copyright and other intellectual property
rights to technologies or business methods that we consider important. There can be no assurance that the assertion of such claims will not result
in litigation or that we would prevail in any such litigation or be able to obtain a license for the use of any infringed intellectual property from a
third party or, if such a license is required, that it would be available on terms acceptable to us.

Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination of laws and contractual provisions to establish and protect our rights in our software and proprietary technology. We
believe that our competitive position is dependent in part upon our ability to protect our proprietary technology. We generally enter into
non-disclosure and invention agreements with employees, licensees, consultants and customers, and historically have restricted access to our
software products� source codes. We regard our source codes as proprietary information, and attempt to protect the source code versions of our
products as trade secrets and unpublished copyrighted works. Despite our precautions and measures implemented to protect against such
attempts, unauthorized parties may have or could in the future copy or otherwise reverse engineer portions of our products or otherwise obtain
and use information that we regard as proprietary.

Our Company has patent and trademarks in certain jurisdictions and is in the process of applying for further trademark registrations and patents,
which may provide such protection in relevant jurisdictions. However, there can be no assurance that this will be sufficient to fully protect our
proprietary technology. In addition, certain provisions of our license agreements, including provisions protecting against unauthorized use,
transfer and disclosure, may be found to be unenforceable in certain jurisdictions.

We believe that patent, trademark, copyright and other legal protections are less significant to our success than other factors such as the
knowledge, ability and experience of our personnel, new product and service developments, frequent product enhancements, customer service
and ongoing product support.

We also have a proprietary interest in our name. The names �CryptoLogic� and �WagerLogic� have become known in the Internet gaming industry.
Accordingly, our competitive position could be affected if our name was misappropriated and our reputation in any way compromised.

There can be no assurance that the steps we have taken to protect our proprietary rights will be adequate to deter misappropriation of our
technology or independent development by others of technologies that are substantially equivalent or superior to our technology. Any
misappropriation of our name, technology or development of competitive technologies could have a material adverse effect on our business,
revenues, operating results and financial condition.
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Hiring and Retaining Employees

Our future success is dependent on certain key management and technical personnel. The loss of these individuals or the inability to attract and
retain highly qualified employees and advisors could have a material adverse effect on our business, revenues, operating results and financial
condition.

Managing Growth

We have a history of growth. The expansion of our business and the increasing complexity of our product offerings, coupled with the rapid
evolution of our markets, and increasing competition that will put pressure on margins have placed, and are expected to continue to place, a
significant strain on our management and operational resources and to increase demands on our internal systems, procedures and controls. Our
future operating results will depend on management�s ability to develop and manage growth, enhance our products and services to respond to
market demand, deal with competition and evolving customer requirements, manage our system infrastructure and requirements to meet the
growing demands of our business, hire and retain significant numbers of qualified employees, accurately forecast revenues and control expenses.
A decline in the growth rate of our revenues without a corresponding and timely slowdown in our expenses or our inability to manage or build
future growth efficiently could have a material adverse effect on our business, revenues, operating results and financial condition.

Future Acquisitions and Investments

As part of our business strategy, we may make acquisitions of, or significant investments in, businesses or technology that offer complementary
products, services, and technologies. Any acquisition or investment will be accompanied by risks, including the difficulty of assimilating the
operations and personnel of the acquired businesses; the potential diversion of the attention of management from our business; the inability of
management to maximize the financial and strategic position of our Company or returns from the investment or acquired businesses; changing
technology approach and requirements, the maintenance of uniform standards, controls, procedures and policies; and the impairment of
relationships with employees and clients as a result of and integration of the investment, acquisition or new personnel.

Stock Volatility

The market price of our common shares has experienced significant fluctuation and may continue to fluctuate significantly. The market price of
our common shares may be adversely affected by various factors, such as proposed Internet gaming legislation or enforcement of existing laws,
the loss of a customer, the announcement of new products or enhancements, innovation and technological changes, quarterly variations in
revenue and results of operations, changes in earnings estimates by financial analysts, speculation in the press or analyst community and general
market conditions or market conditions specific to particular industries, including the Internet and gaming.
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In addition, the stock market has from time to time experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations. These company-specific or broad market
fluctuations may adversely affect the market price for our common shares. Anti-online gaming legislation could also impact our ability to remain
listed.

Although our common shares are listed and traded on the Toronto Stock Exchange, the NASDAQ National Market and the London Stock
Exchange�s Main Market, this should not imply that there will always be a liquid market in our common shares.

OUTLOOK

While the global e-gaming market continues to forecast vast growth potential � estimated to reach $24 billion by 2010 (source: Global Betting
and Gaming Consultants, December 2005) � competition is intensifying for players� attention and market position, and the industry remains
challenged by US legislative uncertainty. CryptoLogic�s record high revenue, earnings and ongoing positive cash flow generation in 2005
validate our disciplined strategy, which is aimed at driving the organic growth of a core group of brand name customers in the world�s key
geographies and game areas for online gaming, while seeking opportunities to selectively add new customers .

At CryptoLogic, we are guided by a concept of �ROE� or �return on effort�. This means an emphasis on quality, not quantity, of customers, and on
being very selective in the projects, products, games and services, which we will undertake in order to realize the best return for our customer
and our organization. This disciplined approach has proven to be the right strategy as reflected in increasing returns and our strong market
position achieved over the past decade.

While we are alert to earlier stage opportunities such as mobile gaming, interactive TV and game areas like skill-based gaming, we have yet to
see meaningful development of these markets and the economic model to justify notable attention and investment at this time. We remain
committed to the proven returns and growth prospects offered by Internet casino and Internet poker as our strongest growth drivers for the
foreseeable future. Management intends to continue to lead in market innovations, and expand in step with, if not exceed, industry growth in
these major areas of online gaming.

In Internet casino, we will continue to extend an increasing range of new and engaging games to help our customers refresh their offerings to
players, enhance the entertainment value and foster player loyalty. In Internet poker, we will continue to enhance our software solution to build
on the strong liquidity and wide choice of games, stake levels and tournaments that we provide today. We have also enhanced our back-office
solution with sophisticated new relationship management tools and reporting options to help customers better understand and serve their players
and provide for more effective player retention and re-activation.
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Although our objective remains targeting one or two new high quality customers each year, which promise incremental growth � if they meet our
specific criteria of having a trusted brand, established player base and marketing resources and commitment � our primary focus is aimed at
leveraging the significant growth prospects of our existing licensees that offer the best prospects for high returns in online gaming.

We are well diversified in the major geographic regions for online gaming. We expect our current geographic mix � with more than 65% of our
licensees� revenue derived from international (non-North American) players � to be appropriate to reduce reliance on any jurisdiction and
maximize opportunities in the key markets around the world.
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Our strong UK and European orientation and regulatory leadership ideally position CryptoLogic for a regulated e-gaming market in the UK �
subject to the commercial-viability of that market as an option for our licensees. As the UK government drafts the underlying codes for its new
regulatory regime, which is planned to be in full operation by 2007, we will continue to emphasize investment in our regulatory compliance
efforts. As one of the world�s few software providers already government certified and actively adhering to high regulatory standards, we have
the regulatory compliance experience to offer licensees the choice of regulated markets for their online businesses.

With our major investment program � aimed at strategic areas to drive sustainable growth � completed in 2005, we will continue to invest in our
business in relation to our growth, revenue generation and potential to maintain our competitive advantage. In 2006, capital investments are
expected to be in the range of 10% to 15% as a percentage of revenue to enhance our position in a competitive and growing marketplace. These
expenditures will be targeted at normal course capital replacement; enhancement of our game platform, infrastructure and decision-support tools;
and to meet evolving regulatory requirements, in particular, support our position in a regulated UK market, once the rules are finalized.
CryptoLogic�s commitment to bring the latest product innovations and service offerings to its Internet gaming solution will always require
continued investment, which is aimed at generating increasing returns in the near term and for the future.

Since 2002, we have diversified our business by key customer, geography and products. By remaining disciplined in the execution of this growth
strategy, we stay clearly focused on working with a select roster of significant quality customers to build on our record of public company and
regulatory compliance coupled with growing revenue, earnings and cash generation that continue to distinguish CryptoLogic as a
long-established public company in the global Internet gaming industry. With increasing industry consolidation and competition, we will also
apply our disciplined approach and financial strength to actively consider potential acquisitions, if appropriate, to advance our growth plans.
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EXHIBIT 3

Certification of Annual Filings

I, Lewis Rose, President and Chief Executive Officer of CryptoLogic Inc., certify that:

1. I have reviewed the annual filings (as this term is defined in Multilateral Instrument 52-109 Certification of Disclosure in Issuers�
Annual and Interim Filings) of CryptoLogic, (the �Issuer�) for the year ended December 31, 2005.

2. Based on my knowledge, the annual filings do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required
to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances under which it was made, with respect
to the period covered by the annual filings;

3. Based on my knowledge, the annual financial statements together with the other financial information included in the annual filings
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer, as of the date and for the
periods presented in the annual filings; and

4. The issuer�s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures for the
issuer, and we have:
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a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused them to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance that material information relating to the issuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the period in which the annual filings are being prepared; and

b. evaluated the effectiveness of the issuer�s disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by the annual
filings and have caused the issuer to disclose in the annual MD&A our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by the annual filings based on such evaluation.

Date: March 15, 2006

/s/ Lewis N. Rose                                     
LEWIS N. ROSE PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
CRYPTOLOGIC INC.

EXHIBIT 4

Certification of Annual Filings

I, Stephen Taylor, Chief Financial Officer of CryptoLogic Inc., certify that:

1. I have reviewed the annual filings (as this term is defined in Multilateral Instrument 52-109 Certification of Disclosure in Issuers�
Annual and Interim Filings) of CryptoLogic, (the �Issuer�) for the year ended December 31, 2005.

2. Based on my knowledge, the annual filings do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required
to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances under which it was made, with respect
to the period covered by the annual filings;

3. Based on my knowledge, the annual financial statements together with the other financial information included in the annual filings
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer, as of the date and for the
periods presented in the annual filings; and

4. The issuer�s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures for the
issuer, and we have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused them to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance that material information relating to the issuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the period in which the annual filings are being prepared; and

b. evaluated the effectiveness of the issuer�s disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by the annual
filings and have caused the issuer to disclose in the annual MD&A our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by the annual filings based on such evaluation.

Date: March 15, 2006

/s/ Stephen Taylor                                     
STEPHEN TAYLOR
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
CRYPTOLOGIC INC.
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